
CITY OF BURLINGTON 

City Clerk 
300 N. Pine Street, Burlington, WI, 53105 

 (262) 342-1171 – (262) 763-3474 fax 
www.burlington-wi.gov 

 

1 | P a g e  
 

CITY OF BURLINGTON 
Committee of the Whole Minutes 

Robert Miller, Mayor 
Diahnn Halbach, City Clerk 

Tuesday, June 16, 2015 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

Mayor Robert Miller called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. starting with roll call.  Aldermen present: John 
Ekes, Ed Johnson, Bob Grandi, Tom Vos, Tom Preusker, and Todd Bauman. Excused: Jon Schultz and Ruth 
Dawidziak 

Also present: City Administrator Carina Walters, City Attorney John Bjelajac, Lt. Mark Anderson, Public 
Works Director Craig Workman, Treasurer Steve DeQuaker, Library Director Gayle Falk, Building Inspector 
Gregory Guidry and Tom Foht of Kapur Engineering 

2. Citizens Comments and Questions 

There was none. 

3. Approval of Minutes from June 2, 2015 

 A motion was made by Ekes with a second by Johnson to approve the minutes from June 2, 2015.  With all in 
favor, the motion carried to approve the minutes.  

4. Topic: Resolution 4730(4) to consider adopting the 2015-2020 Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan 
(CORP). 

Mayor Miller introduced Blake Theisen, Associate for SAA Design Group. Theisen presented a PowerPoint 
and explained that the CORP needs to be revised every four years and is the City’s guide to acquire and 
develop park and recreation facilities and identifies future growth and development of its current facilities. 
Theisen further explained that the CORP is also a tool that enables the City to participate and receive outdoor 
recreation grant funding offered by the Department of Natural Resources (DNR). During his presentation, 
Theisen stated that the city of Burlington has 26 active and passive parks and that overall general 
recommendations for the entire park system include continuing to retrofit all parks and park facilities 
(restrooms and shelters) to be ADA compliant, improving tot lots and playgrounds with amenities for all ages, 
completing the citywide multipurpose trail system that connects all the parks, and actively pursuing funds for 
park and recreation programs and park development.  

Preusker inquired about keeping the soccer field facilities open later in the fall and earlier in the spring. 
Theisen replied that the soccer fields in Bushnell Park are controlled by the County. 

Vos stated that he felt the Park Board needs to address accessibility to parks and facilities year around. 

Preusker wanted to know what kind of grants are available for volleyball and basketball courts. Theisen 
replied that active recreation is not grant supported. 

Vos suggested setting aside park funds to make additional improvements. 

Preusker asked how much money is budgeted annually for the parks. Steve DeQuaker replied that $25,000 is 
budgeted annually, but is nowhere near the amount actually needed to make all the necessary improvements. 



2 | P a g e  
 

Grandi asked how much is typically budgeted for parks. Theisen replied the amount typically budgeted is four 
times the amount, which would be approximately $100,000.  

Mayor Miller stated that it is Council’s role to determine what is available in the budget, but also cautioned 
Council that cuts would have to be made in other departments in order to fund the parks. 

Walters suggested going back to the Park Board and them prioritize a “wish list” and then see how the City 
can help implement from that point.   

5. Topic: Resolution 4731(5) to consider purchasing a voice logging system for the Police Department from 
Word Systems, Inc., in the amount of $27,714. 

Mayor Miller introduced Resolution 4731(5) and opened it up for discussion. 

Lt. Mark Anderson explained that a voice logging system is a crucial tool for the City of Burlington Police 
Department as it archives 911 calls, radio communications, and incoming calls to the police department; the 
archived recordings are used by the courts as evidence, by officers in report writing, and by administration in 
investigating citizen complaints. Anderson further stated that the current system, which was purchased in 
2009, has stopped functioning and is crucial that its replacement is expedited. 

Grandi asked about the typical life span of this equipment. Anderson responded that the typical lifespan is 5-6 
years.  

Preusker inquired about data backup capabilities. Anderson responded that there is an internal hard drive and 
an external DVD that is stored off-site.  

6. Topic: Resolution 4732(6) to consider approving an award bid for the Burlington TID Five Utility and Street 
Improvements, Phase Two Project to Townsend Construction, Inc., in the amount of $2,240,245. 

Mayor Miller introduced Resolution 4732(6) and opened it up for discussion.  

Craig Workman explained that this project represents the second phase of utility construction for the district 
and includes approximately 5,800 feet of watermain installation; 2,650 feet of sanitary sewer installation; 
reconstruction of approximately 1,500 feet of Spring Valley Road; bike path construction and a sanitary sewer 
lift station. Workman further stated that only two bids were received and Townsends bid was the lowest and 
most responsive.   

Preusker inquired as to why only two bids were received. Workman responded that its construction season 
and many jobs have already been bid out, including the Aurora project which Wanasek has been heavily 
involved with. 

7. Topic: Resolution 4733(7) to consider approving local funds as a match to the Department of Natural 
Resources (DNR) Urban Nonpoint Source and Storm Water Management Grant for the development of a 
Storm Water Management Plan. 

Mayor Miller introduced Resolution 4733(7) and opened it up for discussion.  

Workman explained to Council that as of March 6, 2015, the City of Burlington is a permitted storm water 
community bound by the requirements of a Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Permit, which is 
required for municipalities located within a federally designated Urbanized Area or with a population of 
10,000 or more. Workman further explained that the first requirement of this permit is for the City to assess 
its existing storm water system and develop a Storm Water Management Plan to meet discharge permit 
requirements, which requires an outside engineering firm capable of providing the scope of services necessary 
to complete the plan. Workman stated that the City requested and would be granted financial assistance by the 



3 | P a g e  
 

State of Wisconsin; however in order to qualify for the reimbursement, the City must first have a resolution 
which documents the City’s obligation to fund the cost of developing a storm water management plan to meet 
DNR requirements. 

Vos asked if the City would need to apply annually for this grant. Workman replied that the City would not 
need to reapply each year, but more money would be needed to implement potential treatment methods. 

Vos wanted to know how the DNR measures if the City meets permit requirements. Workman responded that 
it’s monitored through sampling and annual reports provided by the engineering firm.  

Vos asked if this would be initially funded through the general fund or something else. Workman said the 
general fund is currently being used; however creating a utility based fund could be considered. 

8. Topic: Motion 15-806 to consider creating the position of Lab Manager within the Department of Public 
Works. 

 Mayor Miller introduced Motion 15-806 and opened it up for discussion.  

 There was no discussion. 

9. Adjourn 

 A motion was made by Vos with a second by Preusker to adjourn the meeting.  With all in favor, the meeting 
adjourned at 7:47 p.m. 

 

Minutes respectfully submitted by: 

 

_____________________________ 
Diahnn C. Halbach 
Burlington City Clerk 
Racine & Walworth Counties 


